

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing Policy

April 2021 – April 2026

Draft – January 2021.

Contents

Section	Contents	Page
1	Introduction	2
2	Decision Making	
3	Failure to Disclose Information	
4	Complaint Against Licence Holders	
5	Drivers Licences	
6	6 Operator Licence	
7	Vehicle Licences	
8	Appendices	
Appendix A	ndix A Assessment of Previous Convictions	
Appendix B	Agreed Medical Examination Providers	
Appendix C	ndix C Approved Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training	
Appendix D	Approved Disability Awareness Training courses and providers	
Appendix E	Approved Language Proficiency Assessment providers	
Appendix F	Policy on the NR3 Database	
Appendix G	Knowledge Test	
Appendix H	Scheme of Delegation	
Appendix J	List of Consultees for this policy	
Appendix K	Useful Documents	

1. Introduction

- 1.1. The overriding aim of Brentwood Borough Council when carrying out its functions relating to the licensing of Hackney or Private Hire Drivers, Vehicle Proprietors and Operators, is the protection of the public and others who use, or can be affected by, Hackney Carriage and Private Hire services.
- 1.2. This policy brings together, into one cohesive document, all previous policy and procedures on all aspects Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licensing in Brentwood.
- 1.3. Each case will always be considered on its merits having regards to this policy. Brentwood Borough Council will only depart from this policy where it considers appropriate to do so. This will normally happen where Brentwood Borough Council considers that there are exceptional circumstances which warrant a different decision.
- 1.4. This policy came into effect on the XXXXXXXX 2021 and will be reviewed every 5 years, or sooner should there be a significant issue in Borough, or reason to consider all or part of this policy.
- 1.5. This policy has been developed with regards to the Department for Transport Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Standards and other relevant guidance. Consultation on this policy has been undertaken with both the Hackney Carriage and Private Hire trade; and with groups that are likely to be the trade's customers, such as groups representing disabled people, organisations with a wider transport interest etc. a full list of those that were consulted is attached as Appendix H.
- 1.6. This policy will come into immediate effect for new licence applicants. For existing licence holders, the suitability criteria around criminal convictions will be applied with immediate effect, along with the conditions of licences. Changes of training requirements and record keeping will be applied to existing licence holders, with a reasonable period for implementation relevant to the requirements imposed. Where this is the case the time frame given will be stated in this policy against the requirement.

2. Decision Making

- 2.1. The Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle licensing functions of local councils are non-executive functions i.e. they are functions of the council rather than the executive (such as the Cabinet). The functions include the determination of licence applications, reviews and renewals, along with the attachment of conditions when considered appropriate. The function may be delegated to a committee, a sub-committee or an officer.
- 2.2. Brentwood Borough Council's Scheme of Delegation is attached as Appendix H
- 2.3. All Hackney Carriage and Private Hire matters under the Council Constitution are dealt with by the Council's Planning and Licensing Committee or by its Licensing Sub-Committee. The Brentwood Borough Council Constitution is published on the <u>Council's website</u>.
- 2.4. All individuals that determine whether a licence is issued will be required to undertake sufficient training. This includes Members and Officers. This training will at least meet the minimum requirements of the DFT standards. Member training requirements and obligations are contained within the Council Constitution.

3. Failure to Disclose Information

- 3.1. Withholding information when submitting an application can be interpreted as deception and may lead to refusal of the application for this reason alone.
- 3.2. Failure to notify the Licensing Department of any arrest, conviction, caution or other relevant matter during the duration of the licence in accordance with a licence condition or bylaw, will also be treated as deception and may lead to refusal/revocation/suspension of a licence for this reason alone.

4. Complaints against licence holders

- 4.1. Complaints about licence holders will be recorded on the Council's database. All complaints will be investigated, and appropriate action taken, which may include, no further action, a written warning, referral to a licensing sub-committee for consideration, or suspension or revocation of the licence.
- 4.2. A pattern of complaints about a licence holder may be sufficient on the balance of probabilities to take more formal action than an individual complaint may warrant alone.
- 4.3. Matters which have not resulted in a criminal conviction (whether that is the result of an acquittal, a conviction being quashed, decision not to prosecute or an investigation which is continuing where the individual has been bailed) can and will be taken into account by the licensing authority. In addition, complaints where there was no police involvement will also be considered. Within this document, any reference to conviction may also include matters that amount to criminal behaviour, but which have not resulted in a conviction.

5. Driver Licences

5.1. Overview

- 5.1.1. For the safety and protection of the public, any person that drives a Private Hire or Hackney Carriage Vehicle that is licensed by Brentwood Borough Council, must hold the relevant driver's licence that is also issued by Brentwood Borough Council.
- 5.1.2. For the purposes of this policy the term "driver's licence" will refer to a Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Driver's licence, or a Combined licence where the holder is entitled to drive both types of vehicles.
- 5.1.3. Drivers cannot be granted a licence unless the authority is satisfied that they are a "fit and proper person" to hold that licence (see Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 ss 51and 59).
- 5.1.4. In determining if a person is "fit and proper", this authority will consider the updated expression "safe and suitable" and will largely apply the test:

'Would you (as a member of the licensing committee or other person charged with the ability to grant a driver's licence) allow your son or daughter, spouse or partner, mother or father, grandson or granddaughter or any other person for whom you care, to get into a vehicle with this person alone?'

5.1.5. Failure to comply with any pre licensing requirement or condition of the licence may be grounds for refusal of application or revocation of the licence for that reason alone.

5.2. Duration of Licences

- 5.2.1. A Driver's licence will normally be issued for a three year duration.
- 5.2.2. Any shorter duration will only be issued if it is appropriate in the specific circumstances of the case, such as when the applicant has requested a one year licence or where required, which may include but is not limited to the licence holder's leave to remain in the UK is time-limited.

5.3. Pre-Licensing Requirements

- 5.3.1. To qualify for a driver's licence you must:
 - Be aged 21 or over.
 - Hold a full DVLA or equivalent driver's licence for at least 3 years.
 - Have the right to work in the UK.
 - Submit a fully completed application form.
 - Be subject to an Enhanced DBS check
 - Sign up to the DBS update service (after the initial DBS check has been completed).
 - If any applicant has, from the age of 10 years, spent six continuous months or more living outside the United Kingdom then criminal records information or a 'Certificate of Good Character' from overseas must also be provided.

- Have been checked against the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) database on refusals and revocations of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licence.
- Have met the Council's Medical Fitness Criteria which is in line with the DVLA Group 2 standard.
- Have met the Council's Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training criteria.
- Have passed the Council's Knowledge Test.
- Have met the Council's approved disability awareness training requirements.
- Have met the Council's Language proficiency requirements.
- Have paid the licence fee (please see current fees list).

5.4. Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) Check

- 5.4.1. An enhanced DBS check must include a check of the children and adult barred Lists (in section x61 of the DBS application 'Other Workforce' should be entered in line 1 and 'Taxi Licensing' should be entered at line 2).
- 5.4.2. Licence holders should maintain their DBS Certificate through the DBS Update service continuously through the duration of their licence, failure to do so is likely to lead to the immediate suspension of the licence.
- 5.4.3. Existing licence holders will need to undertake a new enhanced DBS check and maintain their DBS Certificate within 6 months from the implementation of this policy, or at the next renewal of their licence if that is sooner.

5.5. Assessment of Previous Convictions

- 5.5.1. The criteria for determining whether an individual should be granted or retain a Hackney Carriage driver's licence are identical to the criteria for a Private Hire driver's licence, the two are considered together.
- 5.5.2. Appendix A sets out the council's criteria for assessing previous convictions for all driver applications and licence holders.

5.6. Previous Refusals and Revocations of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire Licences

- 5.6.1. A check of the National Anti-Fraud Network (NAFN) database on refusals and revocations of Hackney Carriage and Private Hire licence (NR3 database) will be made for every licence application.
- 5.6.2. The applicant will also be required to disclose if they hold or have previously held a licence with another authority, and if they have had an application for a licence refused, revoked or suspended by any other licensing authority.
- 5.6.3. Where an applicant has a previous refusal, suspension or revocation by another authority, contact will be made with the relevant licensing authority to seek further information. If information is disclosed, this information will be taken into account in determining the applicant's fitness to be licensed.
- 5.6.4. Brentwood Borough Council's policy on how we use the NR3 Database can be found at Appendix F

5.7. Medical Fitness Criteria

- 5.7.1. Up to the age of 70 years, drivers will be required to undergo a medical examination to DVLA Group 2 standards as to their fitness to drive, every three years, or any lesser period that the examining doctor may decide.
- 5.7.2. Those drivers suffering from known and notified medical disorders and those over 70 years of age, will be required to undergo a medical examination to Group 2 standards annually, or any lesser period that the examining doctor may decide.
- 5.7.3. All medical examinations will be at the expense of the individual driver. The Council reserves the right in accordance with the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 to require an applicant or driver to undertake an independent medical examination to DVLA Group 2 standards at such clinic or hospital as the Council may direct.
- 5.7.4. All medical examinations must be undertaken at one of the Council's agreed medical examination providers as in Appendix B.
- 5.8. Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training
- 5.8.1. All new applicants must have undergone the Council's approved Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training before a licence is granted.
- 5.8.2. Licence holders must undertake the Council's approved refresher training where required every 3 years.
- 5.8.3. The Council's approved Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training courses and providers are detailed in Appendix C.

5.9. Disability Awareness Training

- 5.9.1. All new applicants must have undergone the Council's approved Disability Awareness Training before a licence is granted.
- 5.9.2. Licence holders must undertake the Council's approved refresher training where required every 3 years.
- 5.9.3. The Council's approved Disability Awareness Training courses and providers are detailed in Appendix D.
- 5.9.4. The cost of this training is not included in the licence fee and must be paid by the applicant or licence holder direct to the training provider.

5.10. Language Proficiency Requirements

- 5.10.1. All new applicants must undertake the Council's language proficiency assessment before a licence will be granted. This assessment will cover both oral and written English language skills.
- 5.10.2. Existing licence holders will need to undertake this assessment within 12 months from the implementation of this policy, or at the next renewal of the licence if that is sooner.
- 5.10.3. The Council's approved language proficiency assessment process and providers are detailed in Appendix E.
- 5.10.4. The cost of this training is not included in the licence fee and must be paid by the applicant or licence holder direct to the training provider.

5.11. Knowledge Test

- 5.11.1. The Council's Knowledge Test is an electronic test that covers different sections as set out in Appendix G.
- 5.11.2. An application fee allows a maximum of 2 attempts at the knowledge test.
- 5.11.3. There is a fee for additional tests that must be paid for before the test is taken.
- 5.11.4. If you are not successful on a particular test, you will only be expected to answer questions on the sections you did not previously pass.

5.12. Conditions

5.12.1. The non-compliance with a licence condition may lead to revocation or suspension of a licence for this reason alone.

5.13. Private Hire Driver Conditions

- 5.13.1. A licence holder, on changing his address, shall notify the Council of such change within seven days by email to <u>licensing@brentwood.gov.uk</u>
- 5.13.2. Any of the following events in respect of licence holder must be reported by email to <u>licensing@brentwood.gov.uk</u> within 48 hours giving full details:
 - a) Any charge or conviction
 - b) Any caution (issued by the Police or any other agency)
 - c) An arrest and release for any offence (whether or not charged)
 - d) Issue of any fixed penalty notice for any matter;
 - e) Any harassment or other form of warning or order within the criminal law, including Anti-Social Behaviour Orders or similar.
 - f) Following any conviction or the issue of a fixed penalty notice which results in penalty points being endorsed on the licence holder's DVLA licence.
- 5.13.3. A driver shall at all times when working, wear their badge on their person so that it is clearly visible.
- 5.13.4. No person shall, being the driver of a Private Hire Vehicle, without reasonable excuse:
 - a) Refuse to attend the needs of, or refuse assistance to any person with a disability, whether or not they are the user of a wheelchair.
 - b) Refuse to permit the carriage of a dog used as a guide dog for a blind or partially sighted person, a hearing dog for those otherwise impaired, or an assistance dog.
 - c) No person shall, being the driver of a Private Hire Vehicle, charge for carrying a guide dog, hearing dog or assistance dog, or for the carriage of a wheelchair.
- 5.13.5. A driver shall not refuse to carry fewer persons than the number marked on the plate.
- 5.13.6. If a driver carries a hirer to a certain place and the hirer asks the driver to wait, the driver may ask for his fare for driving there and ask also for a deposit against the waiting time. After accepting such a deposit, the driver shall not drive away without the consent of the hirer.
- 5.13.7. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle who shall have agreed or shall have been hired to be in attendance with the vehicle at an appointed time and place shall:
 - a) Unless delayed or prevented by some sufficient cause, punctually attend with such vehicle at the appointed time and place.
 - b) When picking up the hirer, make his presence known in person and shall not attract the hirer's attention by sounding their horn, shouting or making any other disturbing noise.
- 5.13.8. A driver shall:
 - a) Convey a reasonable quantity of luggage;
 - b) Afford reasonable assistance in loading and unloading such luggage.

- 5.13.9. If the Private Hire Vehicle is fitted with a meter, the driver shall, at the commencement of the journey, activate the meter so that the word "HIRED" is clearly visible and shall keep the meter operating until the termination of the hiring. "Commencement of the journey" means:
 - a) When the hirer enters the vehicle;
 - b) When the driver has attended at an appointed place and has made their presence known to the hirer.
 - c) When the driver has presented themselves at an appointed place at a specified time.
- 5.13.10. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall at all times when the vehicle is hired:
 - a) Take all reasonable precautions to ensure the safety of persons travelling in, entering or alighting from their vehicle;
 - b) Be clean, respectable, of smart appearance and act with civility towards all persons and shall comply with the reasonable requirements of the hirer(s).
- 5.13.11. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle, when hired to drive to any particular destination shall, subject to any directions given by the hirer, proceed to that destination by the shortest available route.
- 5.13.12. Once a Private Hire Vehicle has been hired, a driver shall not carry anyone else during that hire, without the explicit consent of the first hirer.
- 5.13.13. The driver shall not demand from any hirer of a Private Hire Vehicle a fare greater than that agreed with the Operator or, if the vehicle is fitted with a taximeter and there has been no previous agreement as to the fare, the fare shown on the face of the taximeter.
- 5.13.14. The driver of a Private Hire Vehicle shall, immediately after the termination of the hiring, search the vehicle for any property, which may have been accidentally left therein. On finding any property left in his vehicle, a driver shall carry it as soon as possible and in any case within 72 hours, to the Town Hall, Ingrave Road, Brentwood, CM158AY, and deposit it there.

5.14. Hackney Carriage Bylaws

5.14.1. For the purpose of this consultation there are no changes proposed to the Hackney Carriage Bylaws. The existing documents will be added to this policy document for completeness.

6. Private Hire Operator Policy and Conditions

6.1. Overview

- 6.1.1. For the safety and protection of the public, Private Hire Operators within Brentwood must have a licence issued by Brentwood Borough Council. The licence permits you to accept bookings for Private Hire work.
- 6.1.2. If you intend to take bookings from an operating base situated outside Brentwood, you must apply for an Operator's licence from the appropriate local council.
- 6.1.3. The objective in licensing Private Hire Vehicle Operators is to protect the public, who may be using Operators' premises and trusting that the drivers and vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important therefore that licensing authorities are assured that those that are granted a Private Hire Vehicle Operator licence also pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious criminal activity. Although Private Hire Vehicle Operators may not have direct contact with passengers, they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles and drivers used to carry passengers are appropriately licensed and so maintain the safety benefits of the driver licensing regime.
- 6.1.4. Private Hire Vehicle Operators have a duty under data protection legislation to protect the information they record. The Information Commissioner's Office provides comprehensive on-line guidance on registering as a data controller and how to meet their obligations.
- 6.1.5. Failure to comply with any condition of the licence may be grounds for revocation of the licence for that reason alone.

6.2. Duration of Licences

- 6.2.1. An Operator licence will normally be issued for a five year duration.
- 6.2.2. Any shorter duration will only be issued if it is appropriate in the specific circumstances of the case, when the licensee has request it or where required, which may include but is not limited to the licence holder's leave to remain in the UK is time-limited.

6.3. Suitability of applicant/licence holder

- 6.3.1. A Private Hire Vehicle Operator licence may be applied for by a company or partnership; the 'fit and proper' test will be applied to each of the directors or partners in that company or partnership.
- 6.3.2. The Council will consider whether an applicant or licence holder with a conviction for offences provided in Appendix A, other than those relating to driving, meet the 'fit and proper' threshold.
- 6.3.3. Refusal to licence an individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver licence does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or continue to hold a Private Hire Vehicle Operator licence; this decision will be independent of a driver licence refusal and based on the appropriate information i.e. it should not consider information that would only be available via an enhanced DBS check but instead that which would be disclosed on a basic check. DBS certificate information can only be used for the specific purpose for which it was requested and for which the applicant's full consent has been given.

6.4. Pre Licensing Requirements

- 6.4.1. To apply for a Private Hire Operator licence you need to submit the following:
 - A completed application form
 - Have the right to work in the UK.
 - A basic disclosure from the DBS (unless the applicant is also a licensed driver with Brentwood Borough Council)
 - If any applicant has, from the age of 10 years, has spent six continuous months or more living outside the United Kingdom then criminal records information or a 'Certificate of Good Character' from overseas must also be provided.
 - The fee (please see current fees list)

6.5. Conditions

6.5.1. Existing licence holders will need to be compliant with all the below condition within 6 months from the implementation of this policy, or at the next renewal of the licence if that is sooner.

6.5.2. General Conditions

6.5.2.1. The licence holder must not permit the display of the word "Taxi", "Cab" or "Hackney Carriage" on any Private Hire Vehicles operated by them.

6.5.2.2. The Licence holder must notify in writing any change of address of the licence holder or the address of the operating centre by email to <u>licensing@brentwood.gov.uk</u> immediately within 48hrs of the change.

6.5.3. Criminality Checks/reporting Convictions and Other Relevant Matters

- 6.5.3.1. The licence holder must complete a basic disclosure from the DBS annually (unless the licence holder is also a licensed driver with Brentwood Borough Council Should the individual cease to hold a driver licence a basic certificate will be required immediately)
- 6.5.3.2. Any of the following events in respect of licence holder, director or partner must be reported by email to <u>licensing@brentwood.gov.uk</u> within 48 hours giving full details:
 - Any conviction (criminal or driving matter)
 - Any caution (issued by the Police or any other agency)
 - Issue of any Magistrate's Court summons against them
 - Issue of any fixed penalty notice for any matter;
 - Any harassment or other form of warning or order within the criminal law, including Anti-Social Behaviour Orders or similar
 - Their arrest for any offence (whether or not charged)

6.6. Booking and Dispatch Staff

- 6.6.1. An up-to-date register of all staff that take bookings or dispatch vehicles must be kept. This record shall be produced on request to any Authorised Officer of the Council or to any Constable for inspection.
- 6.6.2. When being added to the register, all individuals must have provided a recently issued (within 3 months) Basic DBS. This should be compatible with the Operator's policy on employing exoffenders. Alternatively the Operator could use a 'responsible organisation' to request the check on their behalf.
- 6.6.3. A record that the Operator has had sight of a basic DBS check certificate (although the certificate itself should not be retained) should be retained for the duration that the individual remains on the register. Should an employee cease to be on the register and later re-entered, a new basic DBS certificate should be requested and sight of this recorded.
- 6.6.4. Individuals that take bookings and/or dispatch vehicles for an Operator must be required, as part of their employment contract, to advise the Operator of any convictions while they are employed in this role.
- 6.6.5. The register should be a 'living document' that maintains records of all those in these roles for the same duration as booking records are required to be kept, this will enable cross-referencing between the two records.
- 6.6.6. Operators may outsource booking and dispatch functions, however Operators have an obligation to protect children and vulnerable adults and they must evidence that comparable protections are applied by the company to which they outsource these functions.

6.6.7. Operators or applicants for a licence must provide to the Licensing Authority, their policy on employing ex-offenders in roles that would be on the register as above. As with the threshold to obtaining a Private Hire Vehicle Operator's licence, those with a conviction for offences provided in the annex to this document (Appendix A – Assessment of previous convictions), other than those relating to driving, may not be suitable to decide who is sent to carry a child or vulnerable adult unaccompanied in a car.

6.7. Record Keeping

- 6.7.1. Operators must record the following information for each booking:
 - the name of the passenger
 - the time of the request
 - the pick-up point
 - the destination
 - the name of the driver
 - the driver's licence number
 - the vehicle registration number of the vehicle
 - the name of any individual that responded to the booking request
 - the name of any individual that dispatched the vehicle
- 6.7.2. Records must be retained for a minimum of twelve months
- 6.8. Use of passenger carrying vehicles (PCV) licensed drivers
- 6.8.1. A Driver who holds a PCV licence and the use of a Public Service Vehicle (PSV) such as a minibus to undertake a Private Hire Vehicle booking is not permitted without the informed consent of the booker. Where a Private Hire Vehicle is unsuitable, for example where a larger vehicle is needed because more than eight passenger seats required or to accommodate luggage, the booker should be informed that a PSV is necessary, and that a PCV licenced driver will be used who is subject to different checks and not required to have an enhanced DBS check.

7. Vehicle Licences

7.1. Overview

7.1.1. The objective of vehicle licensing is to protect the public, who trust that vehicles dispatched are above all else safe. It is important therefore that Brentwood Borough Council is assured that those granted a vehicle licence pose no threat to the public and have no links to serious criminal activity. Although vehicle proprietors may not have direct contact with passengers, they are still entrusted to ensure that the vehicles used to carry passengers are properly licensed and so maintain the safety benefits of the licence regime.

7.2. Duration of Licences

7.2.1. A Vehicle licence will only be issued for a one year duration.

7.3. Suitability of the Applicant/Licence Holder

- 7.3.1. Private Hire Vehicle licence may be applied for by a company or partnership; the 'fit and proper' test will be applied to each of the directors or partners in that company or partnership.
- 7.3.2. The Council will consider whether an applicant or licence holder with a conviction for offences provided in Appendix A, other than those relating to driving, meet the 'fit and proper' threshold.
- 7.3.3. Refusal to licence an individual as a driver or to suspend or revoke a driver licence does not automatically mean that that individual cannot be issued or continue to hold a vehicle licence; this decision will be independent of a driver licence refusal and based on the appropriate information i.e. it should not consider information that would only be available via an enhanced DBS check but instead that which would be disclosed on a basic check. DBS certificate information can only be used for the specific purpose for which it was requested and for which the applicant's full consent has been given.

7.4. Pre Licensing Requirements

- 7.4.1. To apply for a Vehicle licence you need to submit the following:
 - A completed application form
 - A basic disclosure from the DBS (unless the applicant is also a licensed driver with Brentwood Borough Council)
 - If any applicant has, from the age of 10 years, has spent six continuous months or more living outside the United Kingdom then criminal records information or a 'Certificate of Good Character' from overseas must also be provided.
 - The fee (please see current fees list)
 - The original V5C vehicle registration certificate (log book), which must be in the applicants name and current address
 - The bill of sale
 - A MOT and compliance check
 - A valid insurance certificate
 - The old licence plate and window card (if renewing the licence)
- 7.4.2. Existing licence holders will need to comply with the above basic disclosure requirement within 6 months from the implementation of this policy, or at the next renewal of the licence if that is sooner.
- 7.5. Vehicle specification and conditions including CCTV.
- 7.5.1. For the purpose of this consultation there are no changes proposed to the existing vehicle specification or conditions. These will be subject to review later this year. The existing documents will be added to this policy document for completeness.

Appendix A – Assessment of Previous Convictions

- 1. Convictions for attempt or conspiracy will be regarded as convictions for the substantive crime. A caution is regarded in exactly the same way as a conviction. Fixed penalties and community resolutions will also be considered in the same way as a conviction.
- 2. Matters which have not resulted in a criminal conviction (whether that is the result of an acquittal, a conviction being quashed, decision not to prosecute or an investigation which is continuing where the individual has been bailed) can and will be taken into account by the licensing authority. In addition, complaints where there was no police involvement will also be considered. Within this document, any reference to "conviction" may also include matters that amount to criminal behaviour, but which have not resulted in a conviction.
- 3. In the case of any new applicant who has been charged with any offence and is awaiting trial, the determination will be deferred until the trial has been completed or the charges withdrawn. Where an existing licensee is charged, it will be for the licensing authority to decide what action to take in the light of these guidelines.
- 4. Where a period is given below, it should be taken to be a minimum in considering whether a licence should be granted or renewed in most cases.
 - 1. Crimes resulting in death.

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime which resulted in the death of another person or was intended to cause the death or serious injury of another person they will not be licensed.

2. Exploitation.

Where an applicant or licensee has been convicted of a crime involving, related to, or has any connection with abuse, exploitation, use or treatment of another individual irrespective of whether the victim or victims were adults or children, they will not be licensed. This includes slavery, child sexual abuse, exploitation, grooming, psychological, emotional or financial abuse, but this is not an exhaustive list.

3. Offences involving violence against the person.

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence of violence against the person, or connected with any offence of violence, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

4. Possession of a weapon.

Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of a weapon or any other weapon related offence, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

5. Sexual offences.

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence involving or connected with illegal sexual activity, a licence will not be granted. In addition to the above, the licensing authority will not grant a licence to any applicant who is currently on the Sex Offenders Register or on any barred list.

6. Dishonesty.

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence where dishonesty is an element of the offence, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

7. Drugs.

Where an applicant has any conviction for, or related to, the supply of drugs, or possession with intent to supply or connected with possession with intent to supply, a licence will not be granted until at least 10 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. Where an applicant has a conviction for possession of drugs, or related to the possession of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least five years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed. In these circumstances, any applicant may also have to undergo drugs testing for a period at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

8. Discrimination.

Where an applicant has a conviction involving or connected with discrimination in any form, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

9. Motoring convictions.

Hackney Carriage and Private Hire drivers are professional drivers charged with the responsibility of carrying the public. Any motoring conviction demonstrates a lack of professionalism and will be considered seriously. It is accepted that offences can be committed unintentionally, and a single occurrence of a minor traffic offence would not prohibit the grant of a licence or may not result in action against an existing licence. Subsequent convictions reinforce the fact that the licensee does not take their professional responsibilities seriously and is therefore not a safe and suitable person to be granted or retain a licence.

A minor traffic or vehicle related offence is one which does not involve loss of life, driving under the influence of drink or drugs, driving whilst using a mobile phone, and has not resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property (including vehicles). Where an applicant has 7 or more points on their DVLA licence for minor traffic or similar offences, a licence will not be granted until at least 5 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

A major traffic or vehicle related offence is one which is not covered above and also any offence which resulted in injury to any person or damage to any property (including vehicles). It also includes driving without insurance or any offence connected with motor insurance. Where an applicant has a conviction for a major traffic offence or similar offence, a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

10. Drink driving/driving under the influence of drugs.

Where an applicant has a conviction for drink driving or driving under the influence of drugs, a licence will not be granted until at least seven years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed. In the case of driving under the influence of drugs, any applicant may also have to undergo drugs testing at their own expense to demonstrate that they are not using controlled drugs.

11. Using a hand-held device whilst driving.

Where an applicant has a conviction for using a held-hand mobile telephone or a handheld device whilst driving, a licence will not be granted until at least five years have elapsed since the conviction or completion of any sentence or driving ban imposed, whichever is the later.

12. Hackney Carriage and Private Hire offences.

Where an applicant has a conviction for an offence concerned with or connected to Hackney Carriage or Private Hire (excluding vehicle use), a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

13. Vehicle use offences.

Where an applicant has a conviction for any offence which involved the use of a vehicle (including Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles), a licence will not be granted until at least 7 years have elapsed since the completion of any sentence imposed.

Appendix B- Agreed Medical Examination Providers

The following medical providers are approved by the Council to undertake a medical examination to the group 2 standards for licence holders and applicants.

- The GP surgery at which the applicant /licence holder is registered.
- Cotswolds Medicals
- D4 Medicals
- Where any of the above options are not available, any medical provider with the written consent of the Council's Licensing Manager.

Appendix C - Approved Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training

The following courses and providers are approved by the Council to satisfy the licensing requirements for the Safeguarding and Child Sexual Exploitation Awareness Training licence holders and applicants.

• Blue Lamp Trust – Taxi Safeguarding elearning.

Appendix D - Approved Disability Awareness Training courses and providers

The following courses and providers are approved by the Council to satisfy the licensing requirements for the Disability Awareness Training.

• Passenger Assistant Training Scheme (PATS) - The Community Transport Association (CTA) published a list of PATS Training Suppliers, which you can download from the CTA: Passenger Assistant Training suppliers by county web page.

Appendix E– Approved Language Proficiency Assessment providers

The following providers are approved by the Council to satisfy the licensing requirements for assessment of language proficiency.

- To be agreed.
- https://tfl.gov.uk/info-for/taxis-and-private-hire/english-language-requirement

Appendix F - Policy on the NR3 Database

Policy to be inserted.

Appendix G - Knowledge Test

The Knowledge test is a multiple choice electronic test that is split into 6 sections, and consists of 55 questions lasting for a maximum of 50 minutes.

	Торіс	Description	Pass mark
1	Highway code 10 questions	Questions relate to things like speed limits, stopping distances, pedestrian crossings, parking and are similar to questions asked on the DVLA theory test.	10
2	Road signs 5 questions	Road signs that you need to recognise.	5
3	Places of interest 10 questions	Landmarks such as pubs, clubs, restaurants, schools, churches, and public buildings you need to be aware of.	9
4	Routes 15 questions for Hackney Carriage drivers only	You'll be expected to select the shortest route between 2 places in the borough. It'll be assumed that there are no roadworks, blockages or anything to stop you going by the direct route. You should note things like roundabouts, no entry signs and one-way streets when giving your answer.	13
5	Conditions and law 10 questions	Conditions relate to both Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles and drivers.	10
6	Numeracy 5 questions	Questions relate to the cost of fares and the change you must give the customer.	5

Appendix H – Scheme of Delegation

• To be added.

Appendix J – List of Consultees for this policy

- Hackney Carriage Licence Holders
- Private Hire Licence Holders
- Taxi Trade Consultative Group TTCG
- To be added to.

Appendix K - Useful Documents

- <u>Statutory Taxi and Private Hire Standards</u> July 2020
- <u>Taxi and Private Hire Vehicle Licensing Best Practice Guidance</u> –March 2010
- IOL Guidance on determining the suitability of applicants and licensees in the hackney and private hire trades April 2018
- <u>Licensing authority guide to right to work checks</u> 23 January 2018
- <u>Overseas Criminal Record Checks Guidance</u> December 2020
- Assessing fitness to drive a guide for medical professionals February 2020
- <u>Access for wheelchair users to Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Statutory Guidance</u> February 2017
- <u>Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Carrying Disabled Passengers Advice for Licensing</u> <u>Authorities</u> – 15 September 2010
- <u>Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles Carrying Disabled Passengers Advice for Drivers and</u> <u>Operators</u> – 15 September 2010
- <u>DPTAC (Disabled Persons Transport Advisory Committee) position on taxis and PHV</u> August 2020
- Government Response to report of the task and finish group on taxi and private hire vehicle licensing. February 2019
- <u>Guidance for Operators of stretch limousines</u> March 2011
- <u>Coronavirus (COVID-19):taxis and PHVs</u> -12 January 2021
- Licensing motorcycles and private hire vehicles July 2012
- <u>Private Hire Vehicle Licensing guidance note</u> August 2011
- <u>Councillor Handbook: Taxi and PHV Licensing</u> November 2017
- Developing an approach to mandatory CCTV in taxis and PHVs January 2019